
 
 Purchasing Division 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

DATE:  March 18, 2020 
FROM:  City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 

TO:   All Interested Parties 
RE: Outdoor Recreation Equipment Concessionaire Public-Private Partnership 

RFP-4754-20-SH 
 
 
Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the 
requirements have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date as 
hereinafter described. 
 
 
Please make note of the following: 
 
 
1. Question: “We’re interested in trying to quantify how the city is classifying this space. Is it 

going to be some function of are you classifying it as A/B or C? Are you considering it retail? 
Special purpose? Or light industrial?”   
Answer: The space is considered Retail. 

 
2. Question: “What time does the bathroom close? When will it be locked for the season if at 

all?” 
Answer: Restrooms are open 6:30 A.M. – 10:00 P.M. throughout the year. 

 
3.  Question: “Who pays the utilities?” 
 Answer: This will be negotiated with the awarded contractor once usages have been 

determined. 
 
4. Question: “What are the design standards for business signage – I.E. can we have a sign 

out front while we are not there – how big? Can it be illuminated? Can we place Blade Flags 
out front while we are open? Hala/Hydrus flags” 

 Answer: Here's what the Las Colonias CCRs state about signage: 
 



   

 
 

 
“ Banners and wind driven signs may be displayed for a up to 30 consecutive days up to four 
times in a 12-month calendar year. Permit periods may run consecutively.” 

 
None of the signs mentioned in the question are allowed per 5.11.1 above. 

 
5. Question: “Can we do Interior design modifications? Storage racks secured to the walls or 

ceiling? TV on wall, increased lighting? Racks, etc” 
 Answer: All interior modifications must be approved by the City before completing them.  

Storage racks and TV on wall are permissible so long as there is not damage to the facility.  
Lighting modifications are likely not possible.  

 
6. Question: “Does this space have a physical address? Can it – mail drop in garage door? Or 

put on side door?” 
 Answer: Please see Sections 1.5, 3.4 and 3.5 of the solicitation document. The address is 

1695 Las Colonias Landing, Grand Junction, CO 81501. The City will work with the vendor to 
make sure mail can be received according to the needs of the vendor. 

 
7. Question: “Does it have heating and cooling system? If not, will the city be installing one?” 
 Answer:  The building does not have Air Conditioning nor is there any plans to install such a 

system.  The building is heated. 
 
8. Question: “Does the breaker panel system have the ability to power a compressor, portable 

heaters & cooling systems, computer system and TV? How many amps does the Breaker 
Panel hold and will we have access to that?” 

 Answer:  We will work with the winning vendor to ensure their comfortable use of the leased 
space.  This will be done by and through the City’s facilities staff including all modifications.  
The vendor will not have the ability to make material alterations without the consent of the 
City.  

 



   

Here are the electrical schedules from the design documents: 
 

 
 
 
9. Question: “Lease is for a year – Can we use shelter/kiosk for storage during the off months?” 
 Answer: Lease is a monthly rate. Storage during off months will be negotiated with the 

awarded contractor once the first season has ended. 
 
10. Question: “Where is the water spigot for washing off equipment and will a key be provided 

for spigot? Will lessee be able to attach fittings and hoses to use it to clean off rental 
equipment? Can the city install another one closer to the entrance of the kiosk? Will there be 
enough water for this?” 

 Answer:  See below for hose bib location. Yes, the vendor will have access to this and be 
able to use whatever attachment desired.  The City will not install another hose bib as the 
current one should be adequate.   

 
Fixtures are as follows:  

 

 



   

 
 

 

 
 
 
11. Question: “Can lessee park or stage a trailer in front? Is there designated parking (staff, for 

shuttle bus, customers)?” 
 Answer: Loading and unloading will be allowed in front of the area, but it is not for long term 

parking. 
 



   

12. Question: “What is the electrical situation like charging equipment radios and tablets during 
the night?” 

 Answer: The power is not shut off at night on the interior, but externally accessible power will 
be shut off.   

 
13. Question: “To utilize space, we plan on having some roller racks for the duckies, SUPs, tubes 

and rafts to be rolled out on the outside area, the sidewalk or open curb space around the 
kiosk (outdoor customer areas along the garage doors). Would this be allowed?” 

 Answer: Yes, the awarded contractor will be allowed to use the outdoor area immediately 
adjacent to the leased space as mentioned in Sections 3.6 and 3.7 of the original solicitation. 

 
14. Question: “Can you please define what the usable sidewalk space?” 
 Answer:  This item is negotiable upon execution of lease.  The City must approve use of 

outdoor space as to not infringe on public use, safety, access or enjoyment. 
 
15. Question: “Is the picnic shelter adjacent to the lease space available to rent?” 
 Answer: Yes. The shelter space is available for rent similar to all shelter spaces throughout 

the Parks and Recreation system.  Visit gjparksandrec.org or call 254.3866.   
 
16. Question: “Explain how the option for three annual renewals works?” 
 Answer: If mutually agreeable between the awarded contractor and the City, a written annual 

renewal will be generated by the City for the contractor to sign. Renewals typically are done 
three months prior to the expiration date to allow time for a new solicitation if the extension is 
not exercised by either party. 

 
17. Question: “Will lessee be able to utilize the Butterfly Lakes and water park for lessons, clinics, 

demos and yoga? Do you need a separate permit to use the Butterfly Lakes and water park?” 
 Answer:  These areas are on a first come first served basis.  The City reserves the right to 

reevaluate this policy and change it as needed as the Riverfront becomes activated.   
 
18. Question: “Can we use the adjacent lawn spaces for dryland yoga and classes? Do we need 

a separate permit for this?” 
 Answer:  Park permits are required for all organized use and reservation of park space.  Call 

254.3866 for more information. 
 
19. Question: “Will internet/WIFI be available in the space?” 
 Answer: No. 
 
20. Question: “Is there a telephone line to the space?” 
 Answer: No. 
 
21. Question: “Can directional signage be used (entrance off of Riverside Parkway, within the 

park, along the trail, etc)?” 
 Answer:  These signs are not allowed per 5.11.3 above mentioned in the answer to question 

#4 above. 
 
22. Question: “Does the kiosk operator have some level of priority access to the Riverfront Trail, 

River Play Space, boat ramp?” 
 Answer: No. As a public venue, the only priority the kiosk operator will have is for the actual 

leased space. 



   

 
23. Question: “Does the kiosk operator have any safety/emergency response expectation along 

the riverfront trail or the River Play Space?” 
 Answer: No. As a public venue, all safety/emergency responses will be similar to any other 

park space throughout the Parks and Recreation system. 
 
24. Question: “On the Create Bid page where we submit the proposal through Bid Net, there is 

a tab named “Pricing”. Do you want us to use the monthly amount we are using in the RFP 
Section 6.0: Solicitation Response Form; or do you want the annual amount submitted? Is it 
something else, like over the four-year total in available contract?” 

 Answer: You can enter $1 in this field. The City only recognizes prices submitted on our 
official Response Form. 

 
25. Question: “Could you please clarify a little more in the RFP Section 3, 3.7 what are “volume 

guarantees or restrictions”?” 
 Answer: The City will not guarantee a certain amount of sales or traffic to the venue, nor will 

the City enter a contract containing these types of guarantees or restrictions. A restriction 
means the City will not agree to a clause stating the lease price is reduced if a certain level of 
activity is not met. 

 
26. Question: “We are concerned with possible conflicts of interest (RFP Section 2, 2.8) with 

other parties that are submitting an RFP. How is the review process separating itself from the 
Las Colonias development board that oversees the commercial development in the park?” 

 Answer: This clause is not related to the commercial development of the park. It has to do 
with the awarded contract, the awarded firm and the City. Meaning no public official or City 
employee can gain financially due to the resulting contract. Consequently, one of your 
employees or a partner is not allowed to be involved in the evaluation or award of this project. 
If you are aware of any conflict of interest (a person who could sway a decision for any 
personal reason) or if they have a family member who is involved in any way, you will need to 
disclose that information. The City must always maintain a transparent and trustworthy 
position in evaluation and award of any and all contracts. Integrity if of the utmost importance. 

 
27. Question: “Does the lessee have preference over the water park features, boat ramp and 

the butterfly pond?” 

 Answer: This was already addressed in question #22: No. As a public venue, the only priority 
the kiosk operator will have is for the actual leased space. 

 
28. Question: “Can an outside business use the water park features, boat ramp and butterfly 

pond to provide safety talks, mobile rental drop offs & pick-up, lessons and events at the 
same time of the lease (if outside business is permitted to do so)?” 

 Answer: This was addressed in questions 17 and 18: These areas are on a first come first 
served basis.  The City reserves the right to reevaluate this policy and change it as needed 
as the Riverfront becomes activated.  Park permits are required for all organized use and 
reservation of park space.  Call 254.3866 for more information. 

 
 
The original solicitation for the project referenced above is amended as noted.  
 
All other conditions of subject remain the same. 
 



   

Respectfully, 
 
 
Susan Hyatt, Senior Buyer 
City of Grand Junction, Colorado 
 


